School Council By-Laws

Walton-Verona High School

ARTICLE VII CONDUCT OF MEETINGS

A. QUORUM

A quorum of the school council shall be a majority (one-half plus one) of the council members. At least one member of the quorum must be a parent. No council business shall be discussed or conducted unless a quorum of council members is present.

B. ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS

Council meetings are open to the public and all interested persons may attend, except those portions of meetings that are conducted as closed sessions.

C. CLOSED SESSIONS

<u>Definition</u>: A closed session is a portion of a regular or special meeting of the council during which the council members meet in private. The council may meet in closed session for the following reasons: to discuss proposed or pending litigation by or against a council member [KRS 61.810(1)(c)], to discuss candidates for a principal vacancy, to conduct consultation in filling other vacancies or any additional items where state or federal law specifically require privacy. [KRS 61.810(1)(f)].

Before a closed session can be conducted, the following steps must be taken:

- 1. <u>Announcement</u>: Contents. An announcement of the general nature of the subject to be discussed and recorded in council minutes.
- 2. <u>Motion:</u> The motion to go into closed session must be made, passed by a majority of council members present, and recorded in council minutes.
- 3. <u>Closed Session</u>: During the closed session, only the business stated in the announcement can be discussed, and no action may be taken. No minutes are to be taken in closed session. If the council secretary is not a council member, the secretary shall not enter the closed session. Details discussed in closed session shall not be discussed outside the closed session.
- 4. <u>Decision</u>: After full discussion of the issue in closed session, the council must return to open session where it may take any official action on the matter. Any actions taken must be recorded in council minutes.

D. AGENDA

- 1. Anyone may submit items for inclusion on the agenda to the chairperson in writing one week prior to a regularly scheduled council meeting. The chairperson shall maintain a complete file of these items.
- The chairperson shall prepare an agenda for each council meeting, including items submitted in writing for inclusion by the public, staff, parents, other council members and other items he or she believes should be on the agenda. The

School Council By-Laws

Walton-Verona High School

- chairperson may declare an item received as not within school council authority.
- At a special called meeting, only the items listed on the notice of meeting can be discussed and no new items can be introduced for discussion or inclusion on the agenda.

E. DISCUSSION OF AGENDA ITEMS

- The school council shall discuss each agenda item before a decision is made. Each council member shall be given an opportunity to express his or her opinion on the item.
- 2. Other persons attending the meeting may be recognized by the chairperson and may address the council as the chair calls upon them to speak. If a significant number of persons wishes to contribute to the discussion on a particular item, the chair may require a sign-in sheet, and set limits on the number of persons who will speak to the issue, and a time limit for each.
- 3. Any agenda item may be referred to a standing or ad hoc committee for further study as deemed necessary by the council.

F. DECISION MAKING PROCESS

- 1. All business and decisions of the school council will relate to the school's mission and purpose to improve the instructional program and/or further the goals in the school's improvement plan.
- 2. No proposed policy may be approved by the school council at the same meeting at which it was initially proposed for study.
- All decisions and policies officially adopted by the Walton-Verona High School Council will be reported to the board of education and superintendent through submission of approved council minutes.
- 4. The school council will make decisions by consensus except as otherwise designated in the by-laws using the following guidelines:
 - A motion and a second are made.
 - After discussion of an item, the chair or any member may state the consensus of the group in one or two sentences.
 - The chair will ask whether any member disagrees with that statement.
 - If all members agree, the decision will be recorded as a unanimous decision in the council minutes.
 - If a member disagrees, the discussion will continue until a suggestion of consensus is made that draws no disagreement, or until the third suggestion of consensus fails.

School Council By-Laws

Walton-Verona High School

G. ALTERNATIVE TO CONSENSUS

When a third suggestion of consensus fails, the council may by majority vote determine to:

- 1. Vote to send the issue back to a committee
- 2. Form an ad hoc committee to study the issue further (the motion on this vote shall include a regular meeting date when the council will hear from the committee), or
- 3. Decide the issue by majority vote of the council

H. CRITERIA FOR MAJORITY VOTE

A majority vote of the council shall be taken after consensus fails three times if the issue meets the following criteria:

- 1. The issue involves the selection of a new principal: the council shall vote and the candidate receiving the majority shall be selected.
- 2. The issue involves the number of persons to be employed in each job classification.
- 3. The issue is whether to continue to meet for longer than 90 minutes.
- The federal or state government or the district board of education has set a deadline by which the school council must make a final decision and that deadline will occur before the next regular council meeting; and
- 5. The members of the council cannot agree by consensus to decide the issue at a special meeting and a majority of the council members wish to decide the issue by a majority vote. When the above exceptions do not apply and consensus cannot be reached, the issue may be placed on the agenda for the next regular meeting or special meeting and the decision may be made at that meeting by majority vote of the council. When voting, any abstention is counted with the majority vote.